
 
 

Bloomington/Monroe County Metropolitan Planning Organization  
Policy Committee 

 

1 

Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 
 April 8, 2011 McCloskey Conference Room 135, City Hall 
Policy Committee minutes are transcribed in a summarized outline manner.  Audio recordings are on file with the City  
of Bloomington Planning Department. 

 
Policy Committee:  Jack Baker (Bloomington Plan Commission), Lynn Coyne (IU Real Estate), 
Kathy Eaton-McKalip (INDOT), Susie Johnson (City Public Works), Iris Kiesling (Proxy for Bill 
Williams - Monroe County Highway Department), Richard Martin (Monroe County Plan 
Commission), Kent McDaniel (Bloomington Public Transportation Corp.), Mark Kruzan, (City of 
Bloomington), Patrick Murray (CAC Chair), Andy Ruff (Bloomington City Council), Mark Stoops 
(County Commission), Jay DuMontelle (FHWA), and Julie Thomas (Monroe County Council). 
 
Others: Michelle Allen (FHWA),Greg Alexander (citizen), Janice Clevenger (citizen), Sarah 
Clevenger (citizen), Brian Garvey (citizen),  Connie Griffin (Town of Ellettsville), Morgan Hutton 
(Chamber of Commerce), Lew May (BT), Cheryl Munson (citizen), Patrick Munson (citizen), James 
R. Reed (citizen), Adrian Reid (City Engineer), Maggie Sullivan (Sustainability Commission), Toby 
Turner (Monroe Co. Hwy), Steve Walls (INDOT), Justin Wykoff (City Engineering), 
 
MPO Staff: Josh Desmond, Raymond Hess, Scott Robinson, and Vince Caristo. 
 
I. Call to Order—Mr. McDaniel called the meeting to order. 
 
II. Approval of Minutes: 

A. March 11, 2011—Richard Martin moved approval of the minutes. Jack Baker seconded. 
The minutes were approved by unanimous voice vote.  

 
III. Communications from the Chair—Mr. McDaniel said that the proposed cuts for mass transit 

funding in the budget were passed by the House. The bill now goes to the Senate 
Appropriations Committee where the prospect is much more positive.  The cuts would mean a 
loss of $400,000 to Bloomington Transit and $50,000 to Rural Transit.  

 
IV. Reports from Officers and/or Committees 

A.  Citizens Advisory Committee—Mr. Murray reported that the CAC recommended 
approval of the FY 2011-2012 Unified Work Program and the Highway Safety Improvement 
Program application review.  After a lengthy discussion, they recommended approval of the 
Transportation Improvement Program with an amendment to move the Sare/Rogers back one 
year and to include Complete Streets language in the 2nd St. Engineering Study.  
B.  Technical Advisory Committee—Mr. Reid reported that the TAC voted unanimously for 
approval of the Transportation Improvement Program. 

 
V. Reports from the MPO Staff 

A.  Progress Report – 2nd Quarter of FY2011—Mr. Hess presented the 2nd Quarter Progress 
Report. He pointed out the Summary Table which shows where the budget stands. Mr. Ruff 
asked if a special allocation of funds for consulting for the Long Range Transportation Plan 
(LRTP) update was warranted.  Mr. Hess said yes. Mr. Ruff and Mr. Hess discussed local 
funding and reimbursed funding. 



 
 

Bloomington/Monroe County Metropolitan Planning Organization  
Policy Committee 

 

2 

B.  Long Range Transportation Plan Task Force—Mr. Hess said Mr. Martin had asked for a 
report on the progress of the LRTP Task Force. At this point, we are coordinating with other 
MPOs across the country for technical input that we might want to include in our plan. We are 
analyzing the data that we have and data we might need. He provided the link to the MPO’s 
webpage and the LRTP Task Force. Mr. Ruff asked if the LRTP Task Force meetings are 
taped. Mr. Hess said only note summaries are available. Staff will be putting together a report 
on the data gathered from peer communities.  
 
C.  HB 1367 (MPO Legislation)—Mr. Desmond said that nothing has changed since the last 
discussion.  The bill is still tabled. There was more discussion about the bill, how it would 
affect MPOs and MPO membership. Mr. Martin said that at the last meeting the PC had been 
provided a proposed list of the qualifications necessary to serve on an MPO. He wanted the 
federal delegate on notice that there seems to be some discontinuity between what the state 
legislator was proposing as a requirement for participation on an MPO and what their duties are 
as an MPO under federal regulation.   
 
Mr. Desmond said that the public comment period is now open for State TIP and for the State’s 
new draft LRTP.  Public comment period ends on May 1 for the Plan and on May 13 for the 
STIP. Public comments are welcome.  Both documents are available on INDOT’s website. 
Comments may be made to the MPO staff or directly on the INDOT website. Mr. Martin noted 
that the worst crash sites are usually on state highways (which we can’t do anything about). He 
didn’t see anything in the STIP that looked like it was going to do anything about those 
locations.  There are safety-related needs that the State needs to address. Mr. Desmond said he 
would pass those comments along. 

 
VI. Old Business 

A.  FY 2012-2015 Transportation Improvement Program (Action Requested*) ***Mr. Ruff 
moved that Item A is postponed until their next meeting on May 13 due to new 
information that has been recently received that could be important when considering 
this item. Ms. Kiesling seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. McDaniel asked if they could have a discussion or does the item have to be simply voted 
on.  Mr. Ruff said his understanding is that the discussion would have to be limited to the 
merits of postponing vs. not postponing. Mr. Martin wanted to know where the State stands on 
their previous requirement of submitting the TIP by a particular point in time.  Mr. Hess said 
that staff has been operating under an assumption since December that all MPOs in the state are 
expected to transmit their adopted TIPs by April 30. This allows INDOT to incorporate all of 
the TIPs into the STIP by April 30.  The state will finalize their draft STIP from May 1 through 
May 31.  Then they will transmit the STIP inclusive of all of the TIPs and State projects to 
Federal Highway by June 1. Then FHWA will review the entire STIP in order to approve by 
July 1, the beginning of the new fiscal year.  Mr. Martin said that the end of public comment is 
May 13—so we won’t be delaying any action if we postpone. Mr. Baker asked why the delay 
was necessary. He thought this special meeting was to help meet the timeline.  
 
Mr. Desmond said a letter was received today from community groups that raised legal 
concerns about the inclusion of I-69 in the TIP.  The letter contains a lot of information that 



 
 

Bloomington/Monroe County Metropolitan Planning Organization  
Policy Committee 

 

3 

will take some time evaluate. It was agreed that City attorneys would need to review the letter.  
Mr. Desmond also explained if the new draft TIP is delayed from the STIP cycle proposed by 
INDOT, then the existing adopted TIP would remain in effect until the new draft TIP went 
through the approval process and was added later. Therefore, fiscal years 2012 and 2013 in the 
existing TIP would remain valid absent any of the changes proposed in the new draft TIP.   
 
Mr. Ruff said that they have a mechanism in our operating policy that if a vote on hiring 
outside attorneys—we can do that electronically so that we wouldn’t have to convene another 
meeting just for that.  Mr. Desmond said that he was correct. 
 
***Mr. McDaniel called for a voice vote for all in favor to postpone to signify by saying, 
“Aye.” The vote was unanimous for postponement. 
  

VII. New Business 
A.  FY2011-2012 Unified Planning Work Program Amendment (Action Requested*)—Mr.  
Desmond said that staff is proposing an amendment to the FY2011-2012 Unified Planning 
Work Program (UPWP). In the 2nd year of the UPWP, the MPO can add unspent funds from 
our previous 2 year work program. This equates to an additional $75,000 in PL funds in FY 
2012, or $93,000 total inclusive of local funds.  The Planning Emphasis Areas that the FHWA 
would like the MPOs to concentrate on are: 1) Quarterly Progress Reports and process to be 
submitted to FHWA, 2) Including a work element and staff time for Planning and 
Environmental Linkages (NEPA), and 3) Working with LPAs on ADA Transition Plans.  Staff 
has heard that FHWA will require interim ADA Transition Plans be adopted by LPAs by the 
end of calendar year 2011 and the final plans will need to be in place by 2012.  Each LPA can 
receive up to $10,000 in reimbursed funds for staff time spent on those ADA Transition Plans. 
Staff presented the proposed UPWP amendment to the TAC and CAC on March 23 and both 
unanimously recommended approval.  
 
There was no public comment. 
 
***Susie Johnson moved approval. Richard Martin seconded. The amendment was 
unanimously approved by voice vote.  
 
Mr. Stoops asked how far behind we are in meeting their requirements concerning ADA 
Transition Plans.  Mr. Desmond said the City has a Transition Plan that needs to be updated. 
Ellettsville is working on one. He didn’t know if Monroe County ever had one. Mr. Stoops 
added that there will be the cost of implementation to consider.  Mr. DuMontelle thanked the 
MPO for adopting many of these Planning Emphasis Areas.  He said that FHWA is going to 
meet with communities about the status of Transition Plans. In a recent poll across Indiana, 
about 1/3 of the communities sampled knew what an ADA Transition Plan was and had one.  
He clarified the changes proposed in a Transition Plan don’t necessarily have to be built in the 
next 2 years.  The Transition Plan identifies a strategy for compliance with the ADA.  He 
discussed specific plans and ADA Transition Plan details.  FHWA is also asking INDOT how 
they will comply.  
 
 



 
 

Bloomington/Monroe County Metropolitan Planning Organization  
Policy Committee 

 

4 

B.  Highway Safety Improvement Program Award Determination (Action Requested*) 
Mr. Hess said the BMCMPO has roughly $582,000 of HSIP funding available. The funding is 
specific to highway safety projects. Allowable projects now include system-wide, low cost, 
programmatic improvements. An example is to upgrade outdated signage to meet new 
retroreflectivity requirements. After the call for projects in January, one application from the 
City of Bloomington was received for updating signs. The request is for $90,000 in HSIP 
funds.  The total project cost would be $100,000. The TAC and CAC both recommended 
approval. 
 
***Jack Baker moved approval.  Julie Thomas seconded. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
***The award was unanimously approved by voice vote.  
 

VIII. Communications from Committee Members (non-agenda items) 
A.  Topic Suggestions for future agendas—Mr. Martin said he wanted to understand how 
legal advice would be handled and who would be deciding the process. Mr. Desmond said he 
didn’t think staff was sure about how that would be done yet. This was just brought up this 
morning. Mr. McDaniel asked if there is money budgeted for legal opinions for the MPO.  Mr. 
Desmond said not specifically. A local public agency, like the City, would have to put up the 
money for this even if it is reimbursed through the MPO.  Ms. Johnson suggested that she could 
meet with Margie Rice (City Attorney), report back to Mr. Desmond who would them update 
the PC.  Mr. Martin suggested including David Schilling (County Attorney).  
 
Mr. Stoops asked about erosion control on the Bypass project. This is under INDOT’s 
jurisdiction.  There are violations that have not been solved.  He asked about monitoring or 
enforcement actions could be taken.  Ms. Eaton-McKalip said that she is aware of the problems 
and they have talked to the contractor and construction inspection team which is monitoring the 
project weekly. Mr. Stoops asked how to transmit such information to her. Ms. Eaton-McKalip 
said to call or send her an email. INDOT will hold that contractor accountable. The issue is 
high on her radar.  
 

IX. Upcoming Meetings  
A. Technical Advisory Committee – April 27, 2011 at 10:00 a.m. (McCloskey Room) 
B. Citizens Advisory Committee – April 27, 2011  at 6:30 p.m. (McCloskey Room) 
C. Policy Committee  – May 13, 2011 at 1:30 p.m. (McCloskey Room) 

 
The meeting was adjourned.  
 
These minutes were approved by the Policy Committee at their meeting held on May 13,2011(JFW) 

 
 


